
MINUTES OF THE 
MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 

MAG REGIONAL COUNCIL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
February 13, 2012 

MAG Offices, Ironwood Room 
3 02 N. 1st A venue, Phoenix, Arizona 

MEMBERS ATTENDING 

*Mayor, Hugh Hallman, Tempe, Chair Mayor Michael Le Vault, Youngtown 
Mayor, Marie Lopez-Rogers, Avondale, #Mayor Thomas L. Schoaf, Litchfield Park, 

Vice Chair Past Chair 
#Mayor Scott Smith, Mesa, Treasurer #Mayor Greg Stanton, Phoenix 
Mayor Jim Lane, Scottsdale 

* Not present 
# Pmiicipated by video or telephone conference call 

1. Call to Order 

The Executive Committee meeting was called to order by Vice Chair Lopez-Rogers at 12:00 p.m. 

Vice Chair Lopez-Rogers stated that public comment cards were available for those members of 
the public who wish to comment. Transit tickets were available from Valley Metro for those 
using transit to come to the meeting. Parking validation was available from MAG staff for those 
who parked in the parking garage. 

2. Call to the Audience 

Vice Chair Lopez-Rogers stated that according to the MAG public comment process, members 
of the audience who wish to speak are requested to fill out the public comment cards. He stated 
that there is a three-minute time limit. Public comment is provided at the beginning of the 
meeting for items that are not on the agenda that are within the jurisdiction of MAG, or non
action agenda items that arc on the agenda for discussion or information only. Vice Chair Lopez
Rogers noted that no public comment cards had been received. 

3. Consent Agenda 

Vice Chair Lopez-Rogers noted that prior to action on the consent agenda, members of the 
audience are provided an opportunity to comment on consent items that are being presented for 
action. Following the comment period, committee members may request that an item be removed 
from the consent agenda. 



Vice Chair Lopez-Rogers announced item #3B, Cpdate on the MAG Five Percent Plan for PM, 
was taken off the consent agenda to be heard, Vice Chair Lopez-Rogers requested a motion to 
approve the consent agenda, Mayor Le Vault moved to approve items #3A and #3C Mayor 
Smith seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously, 

3A, Approval of the January 17, 2012 Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

The Regional Council Executive Committee, by consent, approved the January 17, 2012 
Executive Committee meeting minutes. 

3C. Amendment to the Elliott D. Pollack and Company Contract for the Metropolitan Business 
Planning Initiative in the amount of $60,000 

The Regional Council Executive Committee, by consent, approved to amend the Elliott D. 
Pollack and Company contract by $60,000 to conduct the additional work for the Metropolitan 
Business Planning Initiative and other MAG efforts. The purpose of the amendment is to seek 
additional expertise in providing a national and global perspective of the economic strategies for 
this region, and to also extend the amount of time that Elliott D. Pollack and Company can be 
engaged in the Metropolitan Business Planning effort beyond the data collection and analysis. 
Elliott D. Pollack and Company will subcontract with Michael Gailis and Associates to analyze 
existing MAG efforts, such as the Metropolitan Business Planning Initiative, the Freight 
Transportation Framework Study and the Thunderbird efforts. This and other information will 
be used to create the foundation for the Greater Phoenix region to better position itself in the 
global network and to enhance the strategic process capable of producing results. It is anticipated 
that in June 2012, the results of the subcontractor effort will be a written report and findings 
presented to MAG and other economic development groups. 

3B. Update on the MAG Five Percent Plan for PM-10 

This item was taken off the consent agenda and moved to be heard. 

Lindy Bauer, MAG Environmental Director, noted House Bill 2798 was at their place. She 
indicated that this Bill would be heard at the House Enviromnent Committee on Tuesday, 
February 14, 2012 and is being sponsored by Representative Reeve. The intent of this Bill is to 
insure the measures in the Five Percent Plan for PM-10 are being implemented and the cities, 
county and the state agencies responsible for implementing the measures report annually to the 
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) by March 30th of each year on the status 
of the implementation of the measures. She noted MAG has been tracking the implementation 
of the measures for the Five Percent Plan which covered 2008, 2009, and 2010. The last year of 
tracking was 2010. She stated the Legislature is now being asked to approve this Bill that would 
require all entities to report by March 30th of every year. 

Regarding the new Five Percent Plan for PM-10, Ms. Bauer stated that the ADEQ has now 

2 



submitted their commitment for the Dust Action General Permit Measure and MAG is currently 
awaiting EPA and ADEQ lo complete discussions on how to best handle the Agricultural Best 
Management Practices Program. 

Ms. Bauer informed the committee thatto date, in 2012, there have been two PM-10 exceptional 
event exceedances due to frontal system high winds on January 21, 2012 and residual dust on 
January 22, 2012. She then showed the committee the magnitude of paperwork that was required 
to process in regards to the exceptional events that took place July 2-July 8, 2011. The 
documentation was over 200 pages in length. Ms. Bauer stated that there are twelve more 
packages of exceptional events that need to be prepared for the remaining exceptional events that 
took place in 2011. 

Ms. Bauer noted that the Arizona Republic did a seven day series on air quality. There was a 
great deal of concern by Maricopa County Air Quality Department, MAG, and the Arizona 
Department of Air Quality regarding this series. A "My Turn" was sent to the Arizona Republic 
indicating the facts on air quality. Some examples she gave were the carbon monoxide standard 
has not been violated since 1996, the one hour ozone has not been violated since 1996 and there 
has not been a violation of the second ozone standard since 2004. She stated for the new more 
stringent ozone standard, there was one monitor in violation last summer. 

Mayor Lane asked how many PM-10 exceedances did we have in 2011. Ms. Bauer stated there 
were 102 exceedances across the network with 101 classified and recognized as exceptional 
events by ADEQ. She noted each event needs to be prepared, documented, and submitted and 
then EPA needs to concur that each event was an exceptional event. She noted this 
documentation process is very labor and time intensive. Ms. Bauer stated that MAG has draft 
legislation where states could be put in charge of exceptional events because each state knows 
there own unique conditions. The state would document the events and make the decisions, in 
consultation with the EPA. 

Mayor Le Vault asked ifthere are any other regions that are also experiencing this issue. Ms. 
Bauer noted Western States Air Resources Council is concerned with exceptional events and the 
Northeast is also concerned due to wildfires that contribute to the ozone, which are included in 
exceptional events. 

Mayor Smith asked if we have received a response from the letter we sent to EPA regarding this 
issue. Ms. Bauer stated a response has not yet been received. 

Vice Chair Lopez-Rogers asked iflhere were any other questions or comments. There were none. 

4. Economic Development Committee Vacancy 

Denise McC!afferty noted composition of the Economic Development Committee (EDC), 
approved by the Regional Council, includes the Chair and the Vice Chair of the Transpmiation 

3 



Policy Committee (TPC). On January 25, 2012, the Regional Council appointed Mayor Jackie 
Meck, Town of Buckeye, as the Vice Chair of the TPC. The West Valley seat that Mayor Meek 
previously held on the EDC is now vacant. A memorandum was sent to the Regional Council 
members explaining the vacant West Valley seat and requesting letters of interest for this seat be 
sent to the Regional Council Chair. She stated one letter of interest was received from Sharon 
Wolcott, Mayor of the City of Surprise. She noted that according to MAG Committee Operating 
Policies and Procedures, the Regional Council Executive Committee recommends to the 
Regional Council a new West Valley elected official to fill this seat. 

Mayor Le Vault moved to recommend Mayor Wolcott to the Economic Development Committee. 
Mayor Lane seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 

5. Regional Conncil Meeting Time For June 27, 2012 

Dennis Smith, stated on January 25, 2012, the MAG Regional Council approved changing the 
time of the monthly MAG Regional Cow1eil meetings from 5:00 p.m. to 11:30 a.m. The time 
change is effective beginning with the Febmary 22, 2012, MAG Regional Council meeting. He 
noted on June 27, 2012, the biannual Desert Peaks Awards event will be held and in the past, this 
event began with the annual meeting of the Regional Council at 5 :00 p.m. followed by the Desert 
Peaks Awards ceremony at 5:30 p.m. With the Regional Council meeting time change, staff is 
requesting guidance from the Executive Committee on when to hold the annual meeting of the 
Regional Council. 

Mayor Smith moved to recommended that the June 27, 2012 Regional Council meeting begin 
at 5:00 p.m. followed by the Desert Peaks Awards ceremony at 5:30 p.m. Mayor Lane seconded 
the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 

6. Discussion of the Development of the FY 2013 MAG Unified Planning Work Program and 
Annual Budget 

Ms. Kimbrough thanked the Vice Chair and committee members and noted the attachments that 
were included in the committee agenda. She stated MAG's budget is presented incrementally, 
January through May, and this month she is presenting the draft of the proposed new projects for 
the FY2013 budget. She noted these projects include the proposed dues and assessments with 
recommended fifty percent reduction, the budget time line, which outlines the budget 
development process, a budget webinar invitation, which is scheduled for Thursday, February 16, 
2012 at 1 :30 p.m. in MAG offices and the descriptions and cost estimates for newly proposed 
projects. She noted all of the newly proposed projects are ongoing and examples of some of these 
projects include Air Quality Technical Assistance On-Call for the Environmental Division and 
the Don't Trash Arizona Litter Prevention and Education Program in Transportation. She also 
stated other projects represent Phase II projects, such as The Managed Lanes Network 
Development Strategy. 

4 



Ms. Kimbrough stated MAG is looking for input through April into the budget elements and any 
comments or questions regarding projects and other regional and sub-regional projects that the 
members would like to discuss. 

Mr. Smith noted ifany MAG member agency has any input regarding projects or is interested in 
starling a study, they should contact MAG staff so they could write up a scope and put it in the 
work program. 

Vice Chair Lopez-Rogers asked ifthere were any comments or questions. There were none. 

7. Funding for the Brookings Metropolitan Planning Initiative 

Mr. Smith stated on July 18, 2011, MAG had received confirmation that Brookings selected this 
region to participate in the Metropolitan Businesses Planning Initiative. It was noted that 
Brookings would be seeking funding from the business community to help support a portion of 
their effmis. Mr. Smith noted MAG staff has drafted a fundraising letter but has not started 
soliciting private sector funding for this effort because MAG has been soliciting for the Desert 
Peaks Awards program. Mr. Smith recommended using a portion of MAG funding as seed 
money or to proceed with the fundraising letter. 

Mayor Smith stated he thought we already committed to Brookings that MAG would cover the 
first year of funding and then get reimbursed by the private sector. Mr. Smith noted MAG would 
need approval from the Regional Council Executive Committee to proceed with payment to 
Brookings. 

Mayor Lane asked what the contractual obligations are with Brookings. Mr. Smith stated there 
is no contractual agreement, however, when the proposal was accepted by Brookings this was the 
intent. Amy St. Peter noted in the proposal submitted to Brookings there was not a specific 
statement for a specific payment amount but there were considerable discussions with Brookings 
to clarify the intent and by participating in the program MAG understood these terms. 

Mayor Lane asked how much has been expended in this effmi to date. Ms. St. Peter noted there 
are two contracts out with business consultants working on this initiative: Elliott Pollack for 
$138,375 and Value Point for $88,000, plus MAG staff time. Mayor Lane suggested MAG send 
out the solicitation letter and to not provide seed money in advance. 

Mayor Smith noted a commitment was made with Brookings to fund the money and they should 
be paid. He agreed it is up to MAG to decide on the best time to start the fundraising efforts and 
he is confident that we can cover this obligation through the private sector. He noted Barry 
Broome from OPEC made a firm commitment that he would work with MAG and be an active 
pmiicipant in securing this funding. 

Mayor Schaaf asked what funding source MAG is planning to pay Brookings as seed money and 

5 



if' this was in MAG's budget. Mr. Smith noted this summer would be one year working with 
Brookings and MAG would be comfortable paying $75,000. He noted because it was not in the 
budget, MAG would be reimbursed when the fonding is secured from the private sector. Mayor 
Lane noted he would rather not h2ve MAG advance the money. He noted fundraising letters 
should go out as soon as possible. 

Mayor Stanton asked if there has been a feasibility study to see if the private sector is interested 
in participating. Mr. Smith stated after speaking with the Chair of this committee, he believed 
the fundraising efforts could be accomplished. Mayor Stanton asked how this will be marketed. 
Mr. Smith noted the business cotmnunities involved in this effort will see the advantage to help 
fund this initiative. 

Vice Chair Lopez-Rogers asked what the timeline is on the commitment to Brookings. Mr. Smith 
stated there is not a specific deadline. He noted that if MAG does not provide seed money to 
Brookings at this time, the fundraising letters could go out immediately. 

Mayor Stanton agreed with Mayor Smith that if MAG has made a commitment then payment 
should be made. He suggested MAG or GPEC organize a roundtable to actively ask for funds 
face-to-face from the private sector. Mayor Lane agreed that a roundtable is a good idea and 
would like to be a part of it. 

Mayor Schaaf noted he would be in favor if MAG could get the fundraising letter out with both 
GPEC and MAG involved in the solicitation. Mr. Smith thought this was a great idea and noted 
GPEC has been a great partner and made early verbal commitments to assist in the fundraising 
efforts. 

Mayor Le Vault moved to support the Metropolitan Business Planning Initiative with MAG 
funding $75,000 as seed money, while simultaneously sending out the funding letters. Mayor 
Smith seconded the motion. 

The motion carried out with Mayor Lane voting no. Mayor Lane clarified his vote, stating his 
support for GPEC participating in the fundraising letter and getting the letter out immediately, 
but opposed MAG advancing the $75,000 to Brookings. 

Mr. Smith wanted to be clear of the approval and clarified that if MAG advances the $75,000 to 
Brookings, MAG be reimbursed when funds come in from the private sector. Vice Chair Lopez
Rogers confirmed that MAG would be reimbursed by the private sector fund raising efforts in 
the amount of $75,000 that was paid in advance by MAG to Brookings. 

8. Review of MAG FY 2011 Goals and Results and Discussion of Proposed Draft FY 2012 
Goals/Wark Emphasis Areas 

Dennis Smith, Executive Director of MAG, presented some of the proposed goals and work 

6 



emphasis areas for FY 2012. He noted MAG partnered with Arizona Depmimcnt of 
Transportation on the South :vlountain Freeway, completed the 110 lane-mile expansion of the 
HOV network, convinced Environmental Protection Agency that the new measures by local 
governments are not needed in the new plan, and received the GFOA award on our CAFR and 
audit due to our clean budget, which is only awarded to a few in the nation. 

Mr. Smith stated the Greater Phoenix Rising website was developed in-house with MAG and 
GPEC working together to create the best economic development website in the nation. He 
noted the border issues affect the whole region and stated a JP AC meeting is taking place at the 
end of February to work on a resolution. He also noted that a Canadian business forum is being 
organized in March to promote Canadian businesses to move or expand to our region. 

Mr. Smith stated the Arizona Commerce Authority worked with MAG on expanding their 
Aerospace and Supply Chain website. He noted that MAG is also continuing to work on the 
Metropolitan Business Plan. Mr. Smith noted these are just some of the accomplishments. 

Mr. Smith stated the decision has been made by the Gila River Community and a Environmental 
Impact Statement and Record of Decision are needed to move forward with building the South 
Mountain Freeway. He stated the Five Percent Plan for PM-10 documentation is now being 
completed, the new Eight Hour Ozone Plan is being developed and MAG Staff has now taken 
on the responsibility for the 208 Water Quality Management Plan. He noted another huge 
technical effort at MAG is the new projections for population. 

Mr. Smith informed the committee the Human Services Division has been working on the 
Protocol Evaluation Project, which MAG received additional funding for from the Governor's 
Office to connect prosecutors, judges, law enforcement, and the community. He noted if there 
are any additional goals or projects to contact MAG staff so they can be discussed at a fntnre 
meeting. 

Vice Chair Lopez-Rogers asked if there were any questions or comments. There were none. 

9. Request for Future Agenda Items 

Vice Chair Lopez-Rogers asked if there were any requests for future agenda items. There were 
none. 

10. Comments from the Committee 

Mayor Schaaf stated it would be very helpful if members and their communities would support 
the F35 EIF program to be based at Luke Air Force Base. 

Vice Chair Lopez-Rogers asked if there were any comments for the committee members. There 
were no comments. 

7 



Adiournment 

Mayor Le Vault moved to adjourn the Executive Committee meeting. Mayor Lane seconded the 
motion and the motion carried unanimously. There being no fmiher business, the Executive 
Committee adjourned at 1 :03 p.m. 

8 


